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Mr. Nakamura,
 
We are forwarding the attached letters for your review:

1. Our letter dated December 21, 2025, addressed to Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin regarding

additional Audit Committee failures, undisclosed implicit waivers of the Company's Code of

Ethics, and missing Form 8-K filings under Item 5.05; and

2. Our letter dated December 24, 2025, responding to the Company's December 24, 2025, letter

rejecting our books and records demand (our initial books and records demand, and

according December 24 response to it from the Company, also attached).
 
We are copying you on these communications so that you have no plausible deniability regarding
the false statements the Company is making and the ongoing violations that remain unremediated.
 
In particular, we draw your attention to the following:

The December 21 letter documents additional disclosure violations that were not addressed

in our December 19 letter to you, including the Company's failure to file Form 8-Ks under Item

5.05 disclosing implicit waivers of the Code of Ethics arising from years-long Section 16(a)

failures by multiple directors and officers, Mr. Myhill-Jones' Form 3 containing false

representations, and the willful false SOX certifications signed by Mr. Myhill-Jones and former

CFO Tu To on August 14, 2025.

The December 24 letter documents that the Company, through outside counsel, has made

demonstrably false claims about Equiniti's transfer agent records.  The attached broker

confirmation proves the transfer was initiated for Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.—not the entity

name the Company claims appears in the records.
 
This is a pattern.  The July 29, 2025, Form 8-K was falsely dated.  That filing contained false
statements about Buxton Helmsley.  The Company has made no effort to correct those false
statements despite being on notice for five months.  Now the Company, through its counsel, has
made additional false statements.  And the disclosure violations documented in the December 21
letter remain unremediated.
 
As we stated in our December 19 letter to you: if you sign a Form 10-K that perpetuates these
violations, you will be certifying financial statements that you know do not fairly present the financial
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December 21, 2025 
 
VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM) 
 
Daily Journal Corporation 
915 East First Street 
Los Angeles, California  90012 
Attn:  John B. Frank, Chair of Audit Committee 
 
Re: Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) – Notice of Additional Audit 


Committee Failures; Undisclosed Implicit Waivers of Code of Ethics; Missing Form 8-K 
Filings Under Item 5.05 


 
Dear Mr. Frank (and Ms. Conlin): 
 


After further investigation alongside advisors and counsel over the weekend, we write 
again to now put you on formal notice—in your capacity as Chair of the Audit Committee of the 
Company—of additional failures by the Audit Committee to discharge its oversight 
responsibilities.  Specifically, the Audit Committee has failed to ensure the Company’s compliance 
with Item 5.05 of Form 8-K, which requires disclosure of waivers (including implicit waivers) of 
the Company’s Code of Ethics, filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2020 (the "Code of Ethics"). These failures compound the governance 
deficiencies we have previously identified and further demonstrate the necessity of the Board 
reconstitution we are seeking. 


 
You will note Mr. Rayani is not copied on this new correspondence (only copying Ms. 


Conlin and Baker Tilly), as will be clear by the end. 
 
It is worth noting, at the forefront, that we have now discovered that Steven Myhill-Jones—


the Company’s Chief Executive Officer—was also in violation of his Section 16(a) filing 
obligations.  This means that four out of four current directors failed to comply with basic federal 
securities law reporting requirements.  One hundred percent of the Board.  The CEO’s delinquent 
Form 3 was not filed until December 16, 2024—nearly three years late—and, as detailed below, 
that filing appears to have been deliberately structured to conceal the full extent of his violations.  
The Form 3 falsely reports Mr. Myhill-Jones owned shares before beginning his service at the 
Company when, by his own admission (we include a quote below), he had never purchased a single 
share of Company stock.  The 400 shares reported were granted to him after he became CEO—an 
acquisition that should have been reported on a separate Form 4, with a transaction date, which 
Mr. Myhill-Jones conspicuously omitted.  This is the same executive who backdated the 
Company’s July 29, 2025, Form 8-K to July 26, 2025, to conceal the Board’s failure to timely 
disclose its accounting investigation into the issues raised by us.  The pattern is unmistakable: 
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when faced with disclosure failures, this CEO’s instinct is not to remedy them but to falsify filings 
to cover them up. 


 
Given no response yet to our December 18, 2025, letter informing of our possible referral 


of the violations of federal law you are continuing to stand behind, we are increasingly believing 
that either you or Ms. Conlin must believe (there must be a majority consensus among Audit 
Committee members) that, as Mr. Rayani admitted belief himself, federal securities laws are 
“flimsy technicalities”.  We stand firm on our deadline of hearing from you by tomorrow, 
December 22, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time, or we intend to proceed with the contemplated 
California State Bar complaint filing, which will be publicly filed with a copy to the Chevron 
fiduciaries and shareholders who are then also likely to be harmed by your then-apparent disdain 
for federal securities laws.  We are certain Beachbody Company Inc.’s remaining Audit Committee 
members (where Ms. Conlin also serves), not to mention shareholders, would also be appalled if 
they knew one of their Audit Committee members had such a disregard for federal securities laws.  
We have offered you and Mary Murphy Conlin a path to preserving your seats on the Board of the 
Company, and hope you both will realize the self-destructive effects of not taking it.  I will praise 
both you and Ms. Conlin in a press release announcing our cooperation agreement, but will do the 
very opposite if this proceeds any further to a proxy contest. 
 


*  *  * 
 
I. UNDISCLOSED SECTION 16 VIOLATIONS AND IMPLICIT WAIVERS. 
 


As detailed in our December 13, 2025 correspondence, multiple members of the Board—
including two members of the Audit Committee—filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that 
were delinquent by as many as six years.  The specifics bear repeating: 
 


• You, John B. Frank: Became a director in February 2022.  Filed Form 3 and Form 
4 on October 3, 2025—more than three and a half years after the statutory deadline. 


• Mary Murphy Conlin: Became a director in May 2019. Filed Form 3 and Form 4 
on October 3, 2025—more than six years after the statutory deadline. 


• Rasool Rayani: Became a director in June 2024.  As of the date of this letter, Mr. 
Rayani has still not filed his required Form 3 or any required Form 4 reports—a 
delinquency now exceeding eighteen months. 


• Steven Myhill-Jones: Became acting Chief Executive Officer on March 28, 2022. 
Filed his Form 3 on December 16, 2024—approximately two years and nine months 
after the statutory deadline.  As discussed further below, Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 
3 filing contains additional deficiencies that warrant separate examination, as we 
do below. 


 
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors and officers to file 
a Form 3 within ten days of becoming a reporting person and a Form 4 within two business 
days of any transaction in the Company’s securities. 
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Section D(2) of the Company’s Code of Ethics—"Timely and Truthful Disclosure"—
provides: 


 
"In reports and documents filed with or submitted to the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and other regulators, and in other public communications made by the 
Company, the Company’s directors, officers and employees involved in the 
preparation of such reports, documents and communications shall make 
disclosures that are full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable." 
 


Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics—"Legal Compliance"—provides: 
 
"In conducting the business of the Company, all directors, officers and employees 
shall comply with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations at all levels 
of government in the United States and in any non-U.S. jurisdiction in which the 
Company does business." 
 


The years-long failures by Messrs. Frank, Rayani, and Myhill-Jones, and Ms. Conlin, to 
comply with Section 16(a) filing requirements are violations of both Section D(2) and 
Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics.  The Company’s failure to take action against these 
violations constitutes an "implicit waiver" under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K. 
 
The Company has never filed a Form 8-K disclosing these implicit waivers.  Item 
5.05(b) of Form 8-K requires disclosure within four business days of any waiver, including 
any implicit waiver, granted to a director or executive officer.  An "implicit waiver" is 
defined as the company's failure to take action within a reasonable period of time regarding 
a material departure from a provision of the code of ethics that has been made known to 
the company. 
 
The Audit Committee—which you chair—has, on top of everything else, failed to ensure 
the Company’s compliance with these additional disclosure requirements.  The Company 
was required to file Form 8-Ks disclosing the implicit waivers granted to each of these 
individuals.  It did not.  This is a separate and independent disclosure failure layered on top 
of the underlying Section 16 violations. 
 


II. STEVEN MYHILL-JONES’ DEFECTIVE FORM 3 FILING. 
 


Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3, filed December 16, 2024, warrants separate examination 
because it appears to have been structured to conceal, rather than remedy, his Section 16 
violations (just the same as Mr. Myhill-Jones’ July 29 Form 8-K was apparent to be 
structured to conceal his disclosure violations there, too). 
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To begin, Mr. Myhill-Jones falsely stated the “Date of Event Requiring Statement” as 
December 11, 2024, knowing very well that his employment started nearly two years 
before that date. 
 
Further, a Form 3 is an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership of Securities."  As earlier 
noted, Form 3 is required to be filed within ten days of a person becoming a director or 
officer.  It reports the securities beneficially owned by the reporting person as of the date 
they became a reporting person (indisputable by the “initial statement” form header)—not 
as of the date the form is filed. 
 
Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 on December 16, 2024, reported that he beneficially owned 400 
shares of Company common stock at the time he began service at the Company.  However, 
at the Company’s February 15, 2023, annual shareholder meeting, Mr. Myhill-Jones stated: 
"while I don’t have equity yet, I’m certainly keen to participate in the future growth of the 
business…" If Mr. Myhill-Jones had never purchased shares of Company stock, then he 
could not have owned 400 shares as of March 28, 2022—the date he became acting CEO 
and the date as of which he was being asked to report ownership for. 
 
As then admitted by Mr. Myhill-Jones himself, the 400 shares reported on Mr. Myhill-
Jones’ Form 3 were granted to him after he became CEO—not shares he owned when he 
initially assumed the role.  Any acquisition of shares after becoming a reporting person was 
required to be reported on a Form 4, not a Form 3.  Form 4 requires disclosure of the 
transaction date, the nature of the transaction, and the number of shares acquired or 
disposed of.  Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 contains none of this information because there is 
no place on a Form 3 to report it—Form 3 is not designed to report acquisitions, only initial 
holdings at the time of beginning service. 
 
The structure of Mr. Myhill-Jones’ filing suggests an attempt to mask a dual violation—
the failure to timely file a Form 3 and the failure to timely file a Form 4 reporting a stock 
grant—by combining both into a single, defective Form 3 that obscures the date and nature 
of the acquisition.  The failure to disclose the grant date is particularly notable; without it, 
shareholders cannot determine when the violation occurred or how long it went unreported. 
 
This, too, required an Item 5.05 Form 8-K disclosure for his personal disclosure violations.  
The Company has never filed one.  Nor did the Company disclose Mr. Myhill-Jones' 
implicit waiver in its proxy statement filed January 8, 2025—which was filed after his 
defective Form 3 but made no mention of his years-long Section 16 delinquency or the 
implicit waiver it necessarily entailed. 


 
III. THE AUGUST 14, 2025 FORM 10-Q: WILLFUL FALSE CERTIFICATION. 
 


On August 14, 2025, Mr. Myhill-Jones and then-Chief Financial Officer Tu To signed and 
filed the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2025.  In connection with 
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that filing, both executives provided certifications pursuant to Section 302 and Section 906 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, certifying that the financial statements "fairly present 
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations" of the Company. 
 
Those certifications were false when made.  More importantly, Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. 
To knew they were false when they signed them. 
 
Between July 14, 2025, and July 29, 2025, Buxton Helmsley sent five separate letters to 
the Board detailing material violations of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
("GAAP") and SEC reporting requirements in the Company’s financial statements.  Any 
jury of reasonable minds (or your peers at the California State Bar) would have understood 
the contents of those letters, for which Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To decided to bury their 
heads in the sand, in complete disregard of federal securities laws.  Our letters of July 14, 
July 18, July 23, July 28, and July 29, 2025, explained in detail: 
 


• The Company’s failure to capitalize software development costs as required by 
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20"); 


• The Company’s failure to separately disclose research and development expenses 
as required by Regulation S-X § 210.5-03; and 


• The materiality of these violations, given the Company’s own admission in its SEC 
filings that software development costs are “significant” (there is no dispute of 
materiality under Regulation S-X). 


 
Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To received these letters. They were on notice that the 
Company’s financial reporting had long violated GAAP and Regulation S-X. They were 
on notice that the financial statements they were about to certify were going to continue 
those violations of GAAP and Regulation S-X.  They signed anyway. 
 
Section D(1) of the Code of Ethics—"Honest and Ethical Conduct"—provides: 
 


"All directors, officers and employees shall behave honestly and ethically at all 
times and with all people.... They shall not misrepresent facts or engage in illegal, 
unethical, or anti-competitive practices for personal or professional gain." 


 
Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To engaged in clearly illegal practices—the willful false 
certification of financial statements under 18 U.S.C. § 1350—for professional gain.  They 
signed the certifications to keep their jobs.  They were given clear details to know that the 
financial reporting was misstated and non-compliant (even if they wanted to argue they did 
not understand the GAAP issues, the Regulation S-X issue of not separately disclosing 
research and development was indisputable, as they already admitted those expenses to be 
“significant”, which clearly met the materiality threshold for requiring separate disclosure 
pursuant to Regulation S-X).  They signed anyway. 
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The Audit Committee’s failure to take action against this conduct constitutes another 
implicit waiver requiring Form 8-K disclosure under Item 5.05.  No such Form 8-K has 
been filed. 
 


IV. THE PATTERN IS CLEAR. 
 


Let us be direct about what has occurred: 
 


• Four directors and officers violated Section 16(a) filing requirements—some for 
more than six years. 


• The Company took no action against any of them. 
• The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waivers. 
• The Company’s CEO attempted to mask his dual Section 16 violations with a 


defective Form 3 filing, falsely dating it and attempting to combine it with the 
contents of a Form 4 to minimize the appearance of the violations. 


• The CEO and CFO signed knowingly false Sarbanes-Oxley certifications after 
being put on written notice of GAAP violations. 


• The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waiver of the Code of 
Ethics arising from that conduct. 


• The Company’s January 8, 2025, proxy statement made no mention of the implicit 
waivers related to Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 and Form 4 disclosure violations. 


 
This is not inadvertence.  This is a pattern of concealment.  The Audit Committee—which 
you chair—has systematically failed to ensure the Company’s compliance with disclosure 
requirements designed to inform shareholders when insiders have been permitted to violate 
the Company’s own ethical standards. 
 
Shareholders are entitled to ask:  If the Audit Committee will not disclose when directors 
violate basic filing requirements, and will not disclose when executives sign false 
certifications, what else is being concealed?  If these failures were mistakes and not in line 
with your personal ethical standards as a securities lawyer expected to uphold the law, you 
need to avoid any further delay in remediation of this Company’s governance and 
compliance failures. 
 


*  *  * 
 


This letter constitutes formal written notice to you, as Audit Committee Chair, of the 
failures described herein.  Any further delay by the Audit Committee to address these matters—
including by ensuring appropriate disclosure in the Company’s forthcoming proxy statement—
will be considered in connection with our pending notice of potential referral to the State Bar of 
California regarding your professional conduct. 


 
For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none. 
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Respectfully, 


 


 
 
 
 


Alexander E. Parker 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. 


 
 
Cc: Mary Murphy Conlin (Audit Committee member, Daily Journal Corporation) 
 


Baker Tilly US, LLP 
2040 Main Street, Suite 900 
Irvine, California  92614 
Attn:  Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner 
 Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner 
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December 24, 2025 
 
VIA EMAIL TO BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM) 
 
Daily Journal Corporation 
915 East First Street 
Los Angeles, California  90012 
Attention:  Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary 
 
Re: Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) – Response to December 24, 2025 


Letter; Demand Under Rule 14a-7 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; Continued 
Demand Under Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act 


 
Dear Mr. Cardile: 
 


We are in receipt of the letter dated December 24, 2025, from Robert Y. Knowlton of 
Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., purportedly responding to our December 19, 2025 demand to 
inspect the books and records of the Company.  That response is inadequate, reflects yet another 
misrepresentation by or on behalf of the Company, and fails to satisfy the Company's obligations 
under both state and federal law. 


 
I. THE COMPANY IS MISREPRESENTING THE TRANSFER AGENT RECORDS. 
 


Mr. Knowlton's letter claims that "the records of Equiniti, the Company's transfer agent, 
show one share now being owned by an entity called 'Buxton Helmsley, Inc.'"  This is false. 
 
Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a copy of the DRS position transfer confirmation from 
Interactive Brokers, the broker that initiated the transfer. As the confirmation plainly 
shows, the transfer was initiated for "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc."—not "Buxton 
Helmsley, Inc."  The confirmation reflects: 
 


• Account Title (at broker): Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. 
• Account Title at Transfer Agent: Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. 
• Request Date: December 15, 2025 
• Date Processed: December 18, 2025 


 
"Buxton Helmsley, Inc." is a completely separate legal entity from "Buxton Helmsley 
USA, Inc."  Our broker does not have an account for any entity called "Buxton Helmsley, 
Inc.," nor is our broker aware of any such entity.  It would have been impossible for our 
broker to initiate a transfer for an entity for which it has no account and no record. 
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Either the Company's transfer agent made a transcription error, or the Company (through 
its counsel) is misrepresenting the contents of the transfer agent's records.  Given the 
Company's well-documented pattern of making false statements—including the falsely 
dated July 29, 2025, Form 8-K, the demonstrably false claims about Buxton Helmsley's 
regulatory status in that same filing, and the ongoing failure to correct those false 
statements despite being put on notice five months ago—shareholders are entitled to be 
skeptical of any factual representation made by or on behalf of this Company. 
 
We demand that the Company immediately produce a copy of the transfer agent records it 
claims to have reviewed.  If those records reflect an error, we demand that the Company 
cause Equiniti to correct its records to reflect the actual registered owner: Buxton Helmsley 
USA, Inc. 
 
In any event, the Company's own letter acknowledges that the transfer was completed as 
of December 18, 2025—one day before our December 19, 2025 demand was submitted. 
Whether the transfer agent's records reflect "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc." (as they should) 
or "Buxton Helmsley, Inc." (if in error), the undisputed fact is that a Buxton Helmsley 
USA, Inc. should have been a record shareholder of the Company as of December 18, 2025, 
and the Company received a valid demand on December 19, 2025.  The Company cannot 
use a ministerial transcription error—if one exists—to evade its legal obligations. 
 
We also note the Company's apparent fixation on the fact that the transfer agent records 
reflect "one share."  Mr. Knowlton's letter underlines this phrase as if it were significant.  
It is not.  It is standard practice for activist investors conducting proxy contests to transfer 
a nominal number of shares—often a single share—into record name for the purpose of 
establishing standing to make books and records demands and exercise other shareholder 
rights that require record holder status.  The bulk of an activist's economic position is 
typically held in street name through brokerage accounts.  Any company with experience 
in contested situations would understand this.  That the Company's counsel apparently does 
not speaks volumes about the Board's preparedness to navigate a proxy contest—and 
further underscores the need for the governance refresh we are seeking. 
 
To be clear: Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. hereby reiterates, in full, the books and records 
demand set forth in its December 19, 2025 letter.  To the extent the Company contends that 
Equiniti's records reflect a different entity name, any such error is Equiniti's to correct—it 
does not vitiate the demand, and it does not restart the Company's response deadlines.  The 
Company received a valid demand from the actual beneficial and record owner of the 
shares on December 19, 2025.  The Company's obligations under Rule 14a-7 and Section 
33-16-102 were triggered on that date, and the Company may not use a ministerial 
transcription error by its own transfer agent to buy itself additional time. 
 


II. THE COMPANY HAS VIOLATED RULE 14A-7. 
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Our December 19, 2025 letter was an unambiguous written request by a record holder to 
inspect and copy the shareholder list in connection with a proxy solicitation. Rule 14a-7(a) 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 provides that upon such a request, "regardless of 
whether the request references this section," the registrant shall: 
 


"(1) Deliver to the requesting security holder within five business days after receipt 
of the request: 
 


(i) Notification as to whether the registrant has elected to mail the security 
holder's soliciting materials or provide a security holder list... 


 
(ii) A statement of the approximate number of record holders and beneficial 


holders..." 
 
See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-7(a)(1). 
 
The Company's December 24, 2025 response does not comply with Rule 14a-7.  It does 
not notify us whether the Company has elected to mail our soliciting materials or provide 
a shareholder list.  It does not provide a statement of the approximate number of record 
holders and beneficial holders.  Instead, it raises a frivolous technicality about entity names 
and purports to condition access on the submission of a "new demand." 
 
Rule 14a-7 does not permit such gamesmanship.  The rule applies "regardless of whether 
the request references this section."  Our December 19 demand was plainly a request for 
shareholder list information in connection with a proxy solicitation.  The Company's five-
business-day deadline under Rule 14a-7 is December 29, 2025 (accounting for the 
December 25 holiday).  We expect full compliance by that date. 
 
Rule 14a-7(a)(2)(ii) further requires the registrant to deliver shareholder list information 
"in the form requested by the security holder to the extent that such form is available to the 
registrant without undue burden or expense."  Our December 19 demand specifically 
requested electronic formats, including Microsoft Excel.  The Company's invitation to 
"visit" its Los Angeles office to manually inspect paper records is not compliant with either 
the letter or the spirit of Rule 14a-7.  We demand electronic delivery of the shareholder list 
and related information as specified in our December 19 demand, as is customary. 
 


III. THE COMPANY'S REFUSAL TO COMPLY WITH SECTION 33-16-102 IS 
IMPROPER. 


 
With respect to the records demanded under Section 33-16-102(b) of the South Carolina 
Business Corporation Act, Mr. Knowlton's letter asserts that the Company "has grounds to 
doubt [our] good faith" because our demand "goes well beyond what [we] know a 
stockholder is entitled to inspect under South Carolina law." 
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This is legally incorrect.  A shareholder does not forfeit its inspection rights by requesting 
more documents than the corporation believes it may ultimately be entitled to receive.  The 
statute requires that the demand be made "in good faith and for a proper purpose" and that 
the requested records be "directly connected with" that purpose.  S.C. Code Ann. § 33-16-
102(c).  Our demand clearly stated proper purposes—investigating potential 
mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of internal controls; evaluating 
director and officer qualifications and performance; and assessing the adequacy of the 
Company's financial reporting. 
 
The Company's characterization of our purposes as lacking "good faith" is not only legally 
baseless but also defamatory.  We are a shareholder of this Company.  We have identified 
serious accounting and disclosure failures that the Company has tacitly acknowledged 
through remedial actions (including the CFO's departure and the belated Section 16 
filings).  We are engaged in a proxy solicitation seeking Board reconstitution.  These are 
quintessentially "proper purposes" under South Carolina law. 
 
Mr. Knowlton's letter characterizes our activities as "attempts to threaten the Company and 
its directors and officers."  This is false and defamatory. 
 
First, we never "threatened" to refer the Company to the SEC.  We already had referred 
the Company to the SEC's Division of Enforcement before any Company representative 
claimed otherwise.  When Steven Myhill-Jones falsely characterized our prior referral as a 
"threat" in the Company's July 29, 2025 Form 8-K, we had already notified him on July 
23, 2025 that the referral had been made.  The Company's continued mischaracterization 
of this timeline—now repeated by Mr. Knowlton—is yet another example of the pattern of 
false statements that pervades this Company's public disclosures. 
 
Second, it is entirely proper—indeed, it is a public service—to inform the Chair of an Audit 
Committee who is a licensed attorney that continued violations of federal securities laws 
may result in a referral to the California State Bar. John B. Frank, Esq. has professional 
obligations under the California Rules of Professional Conduct, including the duty not to 
commit acts involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, or corruption.  Notifying a lawyer that 
his conduct may implicate those obligations is not a "threat"—it is a courtesy that provides 
him the opportunity to remediate before formal action is taken.  Corporate fiduciaries, and 
especially those who are licensed attorneys, are expected to uphold federal securities laws 
without having to be told to do so.  The fact that this Board apparently requires such 
reminders is itself an indictment of its governance. 
 
Identifying violations of federal securities laws and holding directors accountable for those 
violations is not improper conduct—it is the exercise of rights that every shareholder 
possesses.  The Company's attempt to reframe legitimate shareholder oversight as "threats" 
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is precisely the kind of entrenchment behavior that underscores the need for Board 
reconstitution. 
 
If the Company continues to refuse to produce records to which we are entitled under 
Section 33-16-102, we reserve the right to seek a court order under Section 33-16-104, 
together with an award of costs and attorney's fees as provided by that section. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. hereby reiterates its demand for 
the records specified in Part II of its December 19, 2025 letter pursuant to Section 33-16-
102.  To the extent the Company contends that Equiniti's records reflect a different entity 
name, any such error does not vitiate the demand, and it does not restart the five-business-
day response period under Section 33-16-102(a).  The Company received a valid demand 
from the actual shareholder of record on December 19, 2025, and the Company's 
obligations under South Carolina law were triggered on that date. 
 


IV. WE WILL NOT ROUTE COMMUNICATIONS THROUGH OUTSIDE 
COUNSEL. 


 
Mr. Knowlton's letter "requests" that we direct all future correspondence to outside 
counsel.  We decline. 
 
We have documented extensive violations of federal securities laws at this Company—and 
those violations remain ongoing and unremediated.  Rasool Rayani, an Audit Committee 
member, remains in violation of Section 16(a) to this day.  Steven Myhill-Jones has still 
not corrected his falsified Form 3 filing from December 16, 2024, which falsely stated the 
"Date of Event Requiring Statement" as December 11, 2024, when his employment began 
nearly two years earlier.  Nor has Mr. Myhill-Jones filed the separate Form 4 that was 
required to report his acquisition of 400 shares—an acquisition he attempted to improperly 
cram into his defective Form 3 to obscure his dual Form 3 and Form 4 violations.  The 
Company also has several far-delinquent Form 8-K disclosures under Item 5.05 that were 
required to report the implicit waivers of the Company's Code of Ethics arising from these 
Section 16(a) failures—as well as the willful false certifications under 18 U.S.C. § 1350 
that Mr. Myhill-Jones and former CFO Tu To signed on August 14, 2025, after having 
been put on written notice of the Company's GAAP and Regulation S-X violations.  These 
violations have occurred on the watch of the Company's directors and officers.  Those 
directors and officers will not be permitted to insulate themselves from accountability by 
routing shareholder communications through intermediaries. 
 
As we have stated in prior correspondence: if any director or officer later claims ignorance 
of the issues we have raised, we want there to be no ambiguity that they received our 
communications directly.  Given the Company's demonstrated pattern of willful 
noncompliance, we will not provide any basis for plausible deniability. 
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We will continue to communicate directly with the Company's Corporate Secretary, Board 
members, and officers as appropriate.  Copies of this letter are being sent to outside counsel 
as a courtesy, not as an acknowledgment that such routing is required or appropriate. 
 


V. DEMAND AND RESERVATION OF RIGHTS. 
 


We demand that the Company: 
 


a) Immediately produce a copy of the transfer agent records it claims show ownership 
by "Buxton Helmsley, Inc." rather than "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc."; 


b) If those records reflect an error, immediately cause the transfer agent to correct the 
records; 


c) No later than December 29, 2025, provide the notification and information required 
by Rule 14a-7(a)(1), including whether the Company elects to mail our soliciting 
materials or provide a shareholder list, and a statement of the approximate number 
of record and beneficial holders; 


d) Provide the shareholder list and related information in the electronic formats 
specified in our December 19, 2025 demand; and 


e) Produce the records specified in Part II of our December 19, 2025 demand, 
consistent with Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act. 


 
If the Company fails to comply with its obligations under Rule 14a-7 and Section 33-16-


102, we will not hesitate to seek judicial relief and to refer the matter to the Division of 
Enforcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission.  We note that obstruction of a proxy 
solicitation through refusal to provide shareholder list access is precisely the type of conduct that 
warrants SEC attention, particularly where—as here—it is part of a broader pattern of disclosure 
and compliance failures.  Continued obstruction by the Board and its counsel will only aid us in a 
proxy contest, indicating a negative inference as to the documents that would be produced, 
underscoring how much the Company has lost its way of transparency and ethics since the passing 
of Mr. Munger. 


 
Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission 


of any fact or legal conclusion.  We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law. 
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Respectfully, 


 


 
 
 
 


Alexander E. Parker 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. 


 
 
 
cc: John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation 
 
 Robert Y. Knowlton, Esq., Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A. 
 
 Brett Rodda, Esq., Baker McKenzie 
 
 Baker Tilly US, LLP 


2040 Main Street, Suite 900 
Irvine, California  92614 
Attn:  Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner 
 Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner 


 
 
Enclosure: Exhibit A – DRS Position Transfer Confirmation 
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December 24, 2025 


Via email (alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com) 


Alexander E. Parker 
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. 
1185 Avenue of the Americas 
Third Floor 
New York, NY 10036-2600 


Re:  Demand pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act 


Dear Mr. Parker: 


Daily Journal Corporation (the “Company”) is in receipt of your letter dated December 19, 2025 
demanding to inspect the books and records of the Company pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the 
South Carolina Business Corporation Act. 


You state in the letter that Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. is a registered stockholder of the Company, 
but that does not appear true.  Rather, effective December 18, 2025, the records of Equiniti, the 
Company’s transfer agent, show one share now being owned by an entity called “Buxton Helmsley, 
Inc.”  We assume this is an entity affiliated with Buxton Hemsley USA, Inc., and upon a new demand 
from the actual stockholder of record, the Company will grant that entity or its agent or attorney 
access to the records required by Section 33-16-102(a). 


In that regard, one or more representatives of Buxton Helmsley, Inc. are invited to visit the 
Company’s principal office at 915 East First Street, Los Angeles, California 90012, during regular 
business hours, to inspect and copy or make extracts therefrom the records of the Company specified 
in Section 33-16-101(e).  Because it appears that Buxton Helmsley, Inc. does not own at least 1% of 
the Company’s outstanding stock, however, it will not be given access to the Company’s income tax 
returns specified in Section 33-16-101(e)(8).   


Please contact Brian Cardile, the Company’s Corporate Secretary, at bcardile@journaltech.com, to 
request an appointment. 


With respect to the records noted in Section 33-16-102(b), a stockholder is only entitled to inspect 
those records if, among other things, the demand is made in good faith and for a proper purpose, with 
the records directly related to such purpose.  Given that your demand for documents goes well beyond 
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what you know a stockholder is entitled to inspect under South Carolina law, even with a proper 
purpose, the Company has grounds to doubt your good faith.  The Company believes that your request 
is part of your ongoing attempts to threaten the Company and its directors and officers into entering 
into a cooperation agreement with you in exchange for not running a proxy contest and not referring 
them to the SEC and professional licensing bodies. 


In addition, the Board has instructed me to request that you and your affiliates direct to both my office 
and the office of Brett Rodda, Esquire, all future correspondence meant for the Company or its 
directors and employees.  My email address is bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com and my mailing address 
is 1201 Main Street, Columbia, South Carolina 29201.  Mr. Rodda’s email address is  
Brett.Rodda@bakermckenzie.com, and his mailing address is 815 Connecticut Avenue NW, 12th 
Floor, Washington, D.C. 20006. 


Sincerely,  


 
Robert Y. Knowlton 


RYK/kdp 
 


Cc: Brett Rodda, Esquire 
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BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC. 
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 


New York, N.Y. 10036-2600 
 


December 19, 2025 
 
VIA FEDEX AND EMAIL (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM) 
 
Daily Journal Corporation 
915 East First Street 
Los Angeles, California 90012 
Attention: Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary 
 
Re:  Demand to Inspect Books and Records Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South 


Carolina Business Corporation Act 
 
Dear Mr. Cardile: 
 


Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., a New York corporation (the "Shareholder"), is—as of the 
date set forth above—a record shareholder of Daily Journal Corporation (the "Corporation"). 
 


Reference is made to the Notice of Intent to Solicit Proxies in Support of Director 
Nominees Pursuant to Rule 14a-19 Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, dated December 
13, 2025 (the "Notice"). As further described in the Notice, the Shareholder intends to solicit 
proxies in support of the nomination of certain persons for election to the Board of Directors of 
the Corporation (the "Board") at the 2026 annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation, 
expected to be held on or about February 19, 2026, including any adjournments or postponements 
thereof or any special meeting that may be held in lieu thereof (the "2026 Annual Meeting"). 
 
I. SHAREHOLDER LIST AND RELATED RECORDS 
 


Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act of 1988 
(the "SCBCA"), as a shareholder of the Corporation, the Shareholder hereby demands that 
it and its attorneys, representatives and agents be given, during regular business hours and 
at the Corporation's principal office or other reasonable location specified by the 
Corporation, the opportunity to inspect and copy or make extracts therefrom, the following 
records of the Corporation for the purpose of (1) disseminating a definitive proxy statement 
to the Corporation's shareholders in connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the 
2026 Annual Meeting and (2) communicating with the Corporation's shareholders in 
connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the 2026 Annual Meeting (the 
"Demand"), including, but not limited to: 
 


a) a complete record or list of the shareholders of the Corporation in electronic 
medium form, certified by the Corporation's transfer agent(s) and/or registrar(s), 
setting forth the name, address and email address of, and the number, series and 
class of shares of stock of the Corporation held by, each shareholder as of the most 







recent date available, and, when available, such list for each shareholder as of any 
record date (the "Record Date") established or to be established for the 2026 Annual 
Meeting or any other meeting of shareholders held in lieu thereof (the most recent 
available date and any such record date, a "Determination Date"); 


b) a complete record or list of shareholders of the Corporation and respondent banks 
who have elected to receive electronic copies of proxy materials with respect to 
meetings of the shareholders of the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-16(j)(2) under 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), including, 
for each such shareholder, the email address provided by such shareholder; 


c) all transfer journals and daily transfer sheets showing changes in the names and 
addresses of the Corporation's shareholders and the number, series or class of shares 
of stock of the Corporation held by the Corporation's shareholders that are in or 
come into the possession of the Corporation or its transfer agent(s), registrar(s), or 
proxy solicitor(s), or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, 
clearing agencies or voting trusts or their nominees from the date of the shareholder 
list referred to in paragraph (a) through the date of the 2026 Annual Meeting; 


d) all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's or its transfer agent(s)' or 
registrar(s)' or proxy solicitor(s)' possession, custody or control or that can 
reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing agencies, voting 
trusts or their nominees relating to the names and addresses and telephone numbers 
of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation as of each 
Determination Date held by the participating brokers and banks named in the 
individual nominee names of Cede & Co. and other similar depositories or 
nominees of any central certificate depository system, including respondent bank 
lists, and all omnibus proxies and related respondent bank proxies and listings 
issued pursuant to Rule 14b-2 under the Exchange Act, including a Weekly Report 
of Security Position Listings from The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (a 
"Weekly DTC Report") as of each Determination Date, and, following the setting 
and occurrence of the Record Date, a Weekly DTC Report for each of the weeks 
until the 2026 Annual Meeting; 


e) all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's possession, custody or 
control or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing 
agencies, voting trusts or their nominees, relating to the names and addresses of, 
and shares of stock of the Corporation held by, the non-objecting beneficial owners 
(or "NOBOs") of the shares of stock of the Corporation as of each Determination 
Date (or any other date established or obtained by the Corporation) pursuant to Rule 
14b-1(c) or Rule 14b-2(c) under the Exchange Act, in Microsoft Excel, or, if the 
information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel file, means by which the 
Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft Excel file, and a hard copy 
printout of such information in order of descending balance for verification 
purposes. If such information is not in the Corporation's possession, custody, or 
control, such information should be requested from Broadridge Financial Solutions, 
Inc., Say Technologies, LLC, and Mediant Communications LLC, or any other 
similar shareholder communications services company that has been engaged by 
the Corporation to provide investor communications services in connection with a 
meeting of shareholders; 







f) an alphabetical breakdown of any holdings in the respective names of Cede & Co. 
and other similar depositories or nominees, as well as any material request list 
provided by Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and 
Mediant Communications, LLC, and any omnibus proxies issued by such entities 
in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting. If such information is not in the 
Corporation's possession, custody, or control, such information should be requested 
from Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and Mediant 
Communications, LLC; 


g) all lists and electronic files (together with such computer processing data as is 
necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such files) containing the name and 
address of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation 
attributable to any participant in any employee share ownership plan, stock 
ownership dividend reinvestment, employee share purchase plan or other employee 
compensation or benefit plan of the Corporation in which the decision to vote shares 
of stock of the Corporation held by such plan is made, directly or indirectly, 
individually or collectively, by the participants in the plan and the method(s) by 
which the Shareholder or its agents may communicate with each such participant, 
as well as the name, affiliation and telephone number of the trustee or administrator 
of each such plan, and a detailed explanation of the treatment not only of shares for 
which the trustee or administrator receives instructions from participants, but also 
shares for which either the trustee or administrator does not receive instructions or 
shares that are outstanding in the plan but are unallocated to any participant, in 
Microsoft Excel, or, if the information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel 
file, means by which the Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft 
Excel file, and a hard copy printout of such information in alphabetical order for 
verification purposes; and 


h) to the extent not already referred to above, any electronic file which contains any 
or all of the information encompassed in this Demand, together with any program, 
software, manual, or other instructions necessary for the practical use of such 
information. 


 
The information and records specified in the foregoing paragraphs (a) through (h) should 
be given as of the most recent available date and, unless stated otherwise, should be updated 
as of the Record Date promptly as such information becomes available to the Corporation, 
its registrar, its proxy solicitor, or any of the Corporation's or their respective agents. 
 
To reiterate, all information requested in paragraphs (a) through (h) should be provided in 
hard copy (paper) form, as well as CD-ROM format, electronically transmitted file, or 
similar electronic medium (any such electronic storage medium, an "Electronic Medium"), 
and such computer processing data as is necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such 
list on an Electronic Medium; and a hard copy printout of the total aggregate accounts and 
shares represented by such list on an Electronic Medium for verification purposes; 
provided, however if the hard copy (paper) form exceeds fifty (50) printed pages then in 
lieu of hard copy (paper), the Corporation should provide such data in an Electronic 
Medium. 
 







II. ADDITIONAL BOOKS AND RECORDS 
 
In addition to the shareholder list and related records described in Part I above, and pursuant 
to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the Shareholder hereby demands the opportunity to 
inspect and copy the following books and records of the Corporation for the purposes of 
(1) investigating potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of 
internal controls at the Corporation, (2) evaluating the qualifications, performance, and 
independence of the Corporation's directors and officers, and (3) assessing the adequacy of 
the Corporation's financial reporting and compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles ("GAAP"): 
 


(i) all minutes of meetings of the Board and any committee thereof, including but 
not limited to the Audit Committee, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that 
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B) 
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20"), (C) 
capitalization of software development costs at Journal Technologies, Inc. or any 
subsidiary or division of the Corporation, (D) any internal or external review, 
investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices or policies, 
or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial 
statements; 


(ii) all written communications between the Corporation and its independent 
auditors, including Baker Tilly US, LLP and any predecessor auditors, from 
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software 
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software 
development costs, (D) any deficiency in internal controls over financial 
reporting, (E) any disagreement between the Corporation and its auditors 
regarding accounting treatment or disclosure, or (F) any management 
representation letters provided to the auditors concerning software development 
costs or related accounting policies; 


(iii) all documents, reports, memoranda, presentations, and analyses prepared by or 
for the Board, any committee thereof, or any officer of the Corporation, from 
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to any internal 
review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's software development 
cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or potential GAAP 
violations, including any reports or findings of internal or external counsel, 
accountants, or other advisors retained in connection with any such review, 
investigation, or inquiry; 


(iv) all written communications sent or received by Tu To, in her capacity as Chief 
Financial Officer or in any other capacity on behalf of the Corporation, from 
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software 
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software 
development costs, or (D) any internal or external review, investigation, or 
inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices; 


(v) all Audit Committee meeting materials, including agendas, presentations, 
reports, and supporting documentation, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that 
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B) 







ASC 985-20, (C) Journal Technologies, Inc., (D) any communication from the 
Corporation's independent auditors regarding accounting policies or internal 
controls, or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial 
statements; 


(vi) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among 
directors of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present, that discuss, 
reference, or relate to (A) Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., Buxton Helmsley, Inc., 
or any affiliate thereof, (B) Alexander Parker, (C) any shareholder proposal, 
nomination, or other communication received from Buxton Helmsley or Mr. 
Parker, (D) any public statement or filing made by or concerning Buxton 
Helmsley or Mr. Parker, or (E) the Corporation's response to any of the 
foregoing; 


(vii) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among 
directors and officers of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present, 
that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) any investigation of the Corporation's 
accounting practices initiated in response to concerns raised by shareholders, (B) 
the scope, findings, or conclusions of any such investigation, or (C) any remedial 
actions taken or considered in response to any such investigation; 


(viii) all engagement letters, statements of work, and invoices from any outside 
counsel, accounting firm, or other advisor retained by the Corporation in 
connection with (A) any review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's 
software development cost accounting practices or compliance with GAAP, or 
(B) any response to shareholder concerns regarding the Corporation's accounting 
practices; and 


(ix) all documents and communications reflecting any communication between the 
Corporation and the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Public Company 
Accounting Oversight Board, or any other regulatory body, from January 1, 2020 
to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to the Corporation's software 
development cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or any 
other accounting matter. 


 
III. PURPOSE OF DEMAND 


 
The purpose of the requests in Part I of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder and certain 
of its affiliates and representatives to communicate with other holders of common stock 
with respect to matters relating to their interests as shareholders, including, without 
limitation, an affiliate of the Shareholder soliciting proxies from the Corporation's 
shareholders in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting. 
 
The purpose of the requests in Part II of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder to (1) 
investigate potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of internal 
controls relating to the Corporation's accounting practices and financial reporting, (2) 
evaluate the qualifications, performance, and independence of the Corporation's current 
directors and officers, including their oversight of financial reporting and response to 
shareholder concerns, (3) assess whether the Corporation's financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with GAAP and whether any restatement may be required, and (4) 







make an informed decision regarding how to vote its shares and communicate with other 
shareholders at the 2026 Annual Meeting regarding the election of directors and other 
matters. 
 
The Shareholder represents that (i) it is seeking this inspection for a proper purpose 
reasonably related to its interest as a shareholder, (ii) it describes with reasonable 
particularity its purpose and the records it desires to inspect, (iii) the records requested are 
directly connected with the Shareholder's purpose, and (iv) it will not sell the requested 
information to any person, give the requested information to any competitor of the 
Corporation, or otherwise use the information for any improper purpose. 
 
The records enumerated in this Demand are directly connected with the above purposes of 
this Demand and are reasonably related to the Shareholder's interests as a shareholder of 
the Corporation. 
 


IV. CONTINUING DEMAND AND RESPONSE 
 
This Demand is a continuing demand. The Shareholder demands that all modifications, 
corrections, additions, or deletions to any and all information referred to in Parts I and II 
above be immediately furnished to the Shareholder as such modifications, corrections, 
additions, or deletions become available to the Corporation or its agents or representatives. 
 
The Shareholder hereby designates the undersigned and any other persons designated by 
them or by the Shareholder, acting singly or in any combination, to conduct the inspection 
and copying herein requested. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the materials 
identified above shall be made available to the Shareholder and its representatives initially 
no later than five business days following the date hereof and each Determination Date.  
All documents responsive to this Demand shall be produced in electronic format to the 
extent such documents exist in electronic form or can reasonably be converted to electronic 
form.  Production shall be made by secure electronic transmission or other electronic means 
agreed upon by the parties.  Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, you are required 
to respond to this demand within five business days of the date hereof.  Please advise the 
Shareholder's legal department, at legal@buxtonhelmsley.com, as promptly as practicable 
within the requisite timeframe. 
 
If the Corporation contends that this request is incomplete or is otherwise deficient in any 
respect, please immediately notify the Shareholder immediately in writing, setting forth 
any facts that the Corporation contends support its position and specifying any additional 
information believed to be required. In the absence of such prompt notice, the Shareholder 
will assume that the Corporation agrees that this request complies in all respects with the 
requirements of the SCBCA. The Shareholder reserves the right to withdraw or modify this 
request at any time. 
 


V. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 
 







This Demand is being made without prejudice to (i) any previous requests made by the 
Shareholder or its affiliates under the Exchange Act, (ii) any previous demand made by the 
Shareholder or its affiliates under the SCBCA or (iii) any other demands, which may be 
made by the Shareholder or its affiliates, from time to time, whether pursuant to the 
Exchange Act, the SCBCA, or other applicable federal or state law, or the Corporation's 
organizational documents. 
 


[Signature Page Follows] 
  







Very truly yours, 
 
BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC. 
 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
Name: Alexander E. Parker 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 


 
 
Cc:  Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  





				alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com

		2025-12-19T18:19:43+0000

		Signed with Box Sign by Alexander Parker (alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com)











condition and results of operations of the Company and do not fully comply with SEC reporting
requirements.  Such certification, made with knowledge of these deficiencies, would constitute a
willful false certification under 18 U.S.C. § 1350.
 
We have also discovered that you are, on information and belief, not a licensed CPA.  This does not
help your position—it makes it worse.  A CPA who signs a false certification might at least attempt to
argue that they exercised professional judgment and reached a different conclusion on the
accounting issues.  You cannot make that argument.  You have no professional accounting
credentials that would permit you to second-guess the GAAP and Regulation S-X violations we have
documented—particularly when we have provided you authoritative AICPA guidance establishing
that the Company's financial reporting is non-compliant.
 
To be clear: you have been told, in writing, by a shareholder with a dual-CPA/Certified Fraud
Examiner on its board of directors—who is also on the board of the AICPA, the very organization that
develops and grades the CPA exam—that the Company's financial statements do not comply with
GAAP and Regulation S-X.  We have laid out the applicable standards in detail.  If you nonetheless
sign a Form 10-K certifying those financial statements, you will be signing a certification you have no
professional basis to believe is true.  That is the definition of willfulness under 18 U.S.C. § 1350.
 
You cannot later claim you did not know.
 
Very truly yours,
Alexander
 
Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer  |  Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

 

T  +1 (212) 951-1530  |  F  +1 (212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3   |   New York, NY  10036-2600
 

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
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From: Parker, Alexander E. 
Sent: Friday, December 19, 2025 4:51 PM
To: 'enakamura@journaltech.com' <enakamura@journaltech.com>
Cc: jfrank@oaktreecap.com; Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.sayerwin@bakertilly.com>; Relampagos,
Stella C. <stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>
Subject: Daily Journal Corporation - Notice Regarding Potential Criminal Liability Under 18 U.S.C. §
1350
Importance: High
Sensitivity: Confidential

 

http://www.buxtonhelmsley.com/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/the-buxton-helmsley-group


Mr. Nakamura,
 
Please find attached formal correspondence regarding material accounting deficiencies at Daily
Journal Corporation that may expose you to personal criminal liability under 18 U.S.C. § 1350, if you
certify the Company's upcoming Form 10-K.
 
This letter details two independent GAAP and SEC reporting violations—the Company’s failure to
capitalize software development costs under ASC 985-20 and its failure to separately report research
and development expenses under Regulation S-X § 210.5-03—and explains why certification of
financial statements that perpetuate these violations would constitute willful false certification
under Sarbanes-Oxley.
 
I strongly encourage you to read this letter carefully before signing any SEC filings on behalf of the
Company.
 
Very truly yours,
Alexander
 
Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer  |  Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com
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